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From:

Hi  
  
Please see below from FC Ecologist. We have something to work on to move forward. 
  
Andy.  
  

  
 

 
 

  
  
Abbeystead Estate (Fair Oak Fell) 
  
The site visit was carried out to check a Biological Heritage Site (also known as Local Wildlife Site, Second Tier Site or Site 
for Nature ConservaƟon Importance) in relaƟon to a possible track upgrade to facilitate extracƟon of an exisƟng stand 
of Ɵmber but also, depending on current survey outcomes, a potenƟal new woodland creaƟon applicaƟon. 
  
The site was recently assessed (June 2022).  The survey was not an NVC or UKHabs survey so it is difficult to make a 
judgement on which priority habitat it is most closely associated with and fully understand its condiƟon.  However, 
although it has undergone some modificaƟon, it is clear from this survey that it sƟll has botanical interest.  This was 
confirmed on my recent visit on the 23 June, see aƩached photographs.  They show some indicaƟve species of 
unimproved grassland, including Common Bird’s-foot-trefoil, Eyebright and Yellow-raƩle.  The sward sƟll retains a good 
raƟo between forbs and small-leaved grasses. 
  
It is the western field that will be impacted by any track enhancement for forestry operaƟons. 
  
I have a number of thoughts and quesƟons on possible ways forward.  They include the following bullet points. 
  

 Have all alternaƟve routes been explored and ruled out with supporƟng evidence?  For example, a beƩer route 
may present itself south of Whitmore that runs north to south and follows a flaƩer contour line. 

 If no alternaƟve routes can be opƟoned then the upgraded track needs to be designed to have the least 
footprint possible where it crosses the Local Wildlife Site.  It should also uƟlise a stone dressing that will not 
impact on the soils that support the plant assemblage.  This may involve some limited soil sampling to best 
gauge the most appropriate stone dressing, for example, we would not wish to use a stone that would result in 
damaging run-off, affecƟng soil pH etc. 

 It is important to know what management regime has been carried out on the grassland, for example, grazing 
regime, stock used, when it has been shut up for haylage, when it has been cut, when and how much muck 
dressing applied (some remains of muck dressing were visible during site visit) and what aŌermath grazing has 
been applied.   
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 IdenƟfy miƟgaƟon, for example, some deterioraƟon in the sward has taken place, so looking at ways to reverse 
this should be a priority for any miƟgaƟon.  This will likely relate to the bullet point above (previous and current 
management) but also may involve some clearance or treatment via weed wiping the advancing creeping 
thistle.  To demonstrate a clear understanding of the importance of these type of meadows in this locality, 
miƟgaƟon could be applied to both fields. 

 If the current track is upgraded, it is worth noƟng that a river crossing will be involved and this may require 
addiƟonal planning and a solid method statement plus supervision to avoid damage and polluƟon, for example, 
sediment release  

 If the track upgrade proceeds, then I would also recommend a full NVC survey is undertaken, the habitat 
condiƟon assessed (Good, Moderate etc.) and the meadows classified in accordance with our SecƟon 41 priority 
habitats.  This is only a recommendaƟon but would provide further useful informaƟon on the Local Wildlife Site, 
thus demonstraƟng an excellent evaluaƟon of a rare habitat. 

  
 - I hope the above makes sense, give me a call if you have any quesƟons. 

  
Thanks 
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